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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN} PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

_ The John Mathias Homestead is made up of two hewn-log houses built close to
each other and joined by a frame "dog trot," or what has been referred to locally

as the "entry." It is located at the intersection of two highways, placed in a
depression with open land on all sides.

Each section is a two-story rectangle, but the older unit (c. 1797) is
slightly longer, though narrower, than the newer one (c. 1825). The frame
connector takes the general dimensions of the former; the division between
sections is especially evident in the differing height of the roofs. Each unit
has an exterior stone chimney at the gable end.

Fenestration in the ¢. 1797 section is reguiar and symmettical, with

~ windows flanking slightly off-center doors on each level of the front, a placement

R

(except for the doors) repeated at the rear. There is also a first-floor door on
the north side next to the chimney, but this was likely installed after con-
struction for access to a dependency once located here. There is no access from
this section directly into the connector. TFenestration in the c. 1825 section
is much more haphazard, especially at the front where a door and two windows are
at the first level and two windows on the second floor are spaced roughly between
these. . The rear has two windows on the first floor (one was probably added or

-)-changed) and one on the second. An opening has been made into the commector on

the upper floor of this section. The "entry'" has doors on each level at the front
and windows at the rear. All windows are 6/6 double-hung sash except for a 6/3
opening at the north rear of the newer section.

A double porch whose roof is a continuation of that on the main house is at
the front of the ¢. 1797 unit, while a one-story porch continues -along the c. 1825
part. The former was rather attractive at one time with its -squared balusters,

_but deterioration has detracted from its lines. Weatherboarding has been placed

over the entire structure, and the roof (sagging and in poor condition on the
.older section) is metal covered. : ’

Iinside, the house is rather pleasant. Each floor of the c. 1797 part is
partitioned into two rooms with a stair at the rear of the building between rooms.
Basic fabric is original, but the quality beaded vertical-board paneling and
nicely styled mantels (there is one fireplace on each level) may not date from
the time of construction. Partitions are also of beaded vertical boards of
varying widths. Methods of joining, types of molding, clean lines and wide
boards indicate a well-finished house whose interior woodwork is quite old.

A lesser quality is evident in the c. 1825 section, although it too is pleasing.
The first floor has been divided into two rooms, while the second level is an open
loft (with logs exposed). In this unit the stair is at the side of the chimmey
that houses only one fireplace. Plain wide boards are used as a paneling on the
first floor (this type of wall treatment might be original), and the mantel here
is high and wide with supporting pilasters that taper from floor to frieze level.

Now owned by the Mathias Civic Center Association, the house was lived in by
descendants of the builders until the 1960s. It is contemplated that restoration
will begin soon with a structural study and roof replacement.
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TATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The John Mathias House at Mathias, Hardy County, West Virginia, is representative
of the early buildings that were constructed over much of this developing area between
the Revolutionary War and about 1850. John Mathias, Sr., was among the earliest
settlers of this rather isolated region in the western part of Virginia's ridge-and-
valley province, and his family played an important role in its evolution.

As with so many before and after, John (Johanne) Mathias emigrated to the emerging
United States from Alsace-Lorraine to escape persecution. Along with two brothers he
first took up residence around Philadelphia, but he soon followed an established trend
of migration to the interior. Moving first to Lancaster County, Pennsylvania, Mathias
later went on to Frederick County, Maryland, then across the Potomac River into the
,) henandoah Valley of Virginia, and finally over the mountains to the Lost River

alley of Hardy County.

1

It was in 1791 that he acquired property around present-day Mathias, and his
family apparently moved into their well-constructed log house around 1797. The
building was substantial by standards of the time, having four rooms, an attic loft,
good interior stairs, sufficient windows and doors, a double porch and fireplaces on
both floors. Logs were hewn and fitted well in the structure.

Farming and land holding were interests of the several generations of John
Mathiases who followed. By 1825 or so the old log house was just not large enough
any longer, and another was built close by and connected to the first by a frame
"entry." This was a grand residence for the place and time despite the fact that
farmers along Lost River were not as prosperous as planters in the South Branch
Valley to the west. They constructed smaller houses of somewhat lesser quality
materials, using logs quite frequently rather than the brick so prevalent in fine
homes around the county seat at Moorefield.

The family became prominent in the valley, and their location along the road to
what became the Howard's Lick resort (now Lost River State Park) most probably was
inviting to many who passed through. Tradition holds that hospitality in the form
of bed and board was offered. ''Light Horse" Harry Lee, owner of a good deal of land
and a cabin (listed in the National Register of Historic Places) at Howard's Lick
is said to have made the house his headquarters before purchasing his property.

; Hardy County was deeply divided during the Civil War when most of the citizens
of what is now Grant County supported the Union and those around Moorefield and to the
east gympathized with the Confederacy. The division was evidenced in county politics,
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too, and records seem to show a Virginia County Court meeting at the John
Mathias House on May 2, 1864, nearly a year after the state of West Virginia
was established. Be that as it may, however, the family has remained centered
at the homestead and has branched into the surrounding countryside in the years
since then.

Farming continued as the major occupation, but side interests in other
businesses began to take on greater importance. Perhaps this reached its most
diverse stage in the person of Phillip Mathias, great-great-grandson of Johns
Sr., for he not only farmed but was a merchant, ran a store, was involved in
a trucking business and became postmaster of the community called Mathias, a
name that apparently was not officially recognized until the latter part of
the nineteenth century (the settlement had been called varicusly Rockland,
Barbarasville and Howard's Lick).

As time went on the old homestead became less and less suitable or
satisfying as a place to live. After the mid 1960s, it was pretty much
abandoned, and it has deteriorated to some extent since. Interest in reuse
of this oldest of buildings in the town (one of the oldest in the county) as
a community center grew, however, and the property was deeded to the Mathias
Civic Center Association in 1974. When repairs and restoration work are
completed, the landmark should have an important role once again.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION ‘
The Mathias House is bounded on the east by W. Va. Route 259 on the north by County
Route 12 on the west by a tree line approximately 25' behind the house and on the
south by a fence line about 200' beyond the house.
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W.Va. Department of Culture and History April 17, 1978
STREET& NUMBER Cultural Center TELEPHONE

Capitol Complex (304) 348-0244
CiTY OR TOWN ) STATE

Charleston West Virginia

m STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER CERTIFICATION
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